Thomas S. Rennedy:

an autobiography
by a country doctor

PART TWO

BEARS AND TURTLES.

Next morneng | had & call at T.AL
Price’s wife in Dania® She gave
birth o 2 nice girl baby. | was
rding on thia otcason my old
ienrite S,

About four or 500 in the after-
noon, about 1-1/2 miles north of
Dania 8 pair of young bears about
the size of a good size dog came out
in the road just ahsad of me then |
thought | would have some fun,

I could get Jim up in about 50
vords and then no further, When-

cided we would go turtle hunting
and turn a turtle. Marshall weighed
about 250 pounds.

We rowed to the beach about 3
miles and tied our boat and started

Marshall got ahead of me about 30

sieps and | =w him stop very sud-
den.

| walked up and there was the
turtie's crawl where it had crawled
out. ‘Well, and lpoked a

run about B0 or 60 yvards,

We want back and examined and
found out it was a bear and he was
wating turtle eggs, after the turiles
had laid. We walked on about 200

right along with it back 1o our boat,

the turtle and had mest for a
manth or Two.

OLD MAN DICK ROE.

| hadn't been home long before
| got a call to old man Dick Roe. |
took my little old rowboat and
pulled up the river about thres
miles to where he lived, got out and
walked in, found him with a high

the alligator, and this northern gen-
teman mk old Mr. Roe, if they
were amphibious. | shall never for-
get hn andwer. His answoer wai,
“Amphibious! Amphibious as Hell,
They'll eat you up in a minute,”
The old man got well and lived
several yoors afterwards from that
attack.

LOUIS PALLICER, HERQ.

About 1908, st at might one even-
ing | got & call to go o the wuth
New River dredge. It wa then
about Tive miles abowe Davie. |
had no pop-boat and a man Asmed
Louis Pallicer had a Gttle pop-boat,
&0 he offered 1o take me up there®
It was about twelve or fifteen miles
from Lasuderdsle to where the
dredgs was,

Thay had built a dam across the
canal behind the dredge 1o hold
water for it 1o work in. The dredge
was 3 mile or a little over above this
dam.

Thay met us at the dam with &
rowboat, we got in the rowboast and
rowed on up o the dredge, and |
climbed up on the dredge and ad-
ministered 10 My patient. By this
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time the moon had risen, and was
about an hour high, so it was a8
good bright moonshiny night, and
to accommodate the poor hard
dredge Palli-
walk
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Lauderdale, just hall way between
daybreak and sunrise next morning.

My wife cloaned and washed my
clothes that | had got all muddy,
and | had two or three calls ahead
of me; as soon a8 | could get on
another suit of clothes and get
cleaned up thoroughly, | saddled
Jim, and we started out, | racked
along fifteen miles up to Deer-
field, got up there and waited on a

another old pony | had to the bug-
gy and started south to make the
other two calls,

Got back home just sbout ten
o'clock that night, went to bed and
slept like a log all night. Next morm-
ing | got Mr. Pallicer and went back
o our dredge again o wee that pa-
tient, and took Mr. Hollowsy's
clothes along back with uva. In the
meantime 3 thake, 8 moccesin, had
bit the captain on the finger, he ap-
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parently got alang all right for three
or four months. Finally the dredge
stopped for 2 month or two and he
took a trip to Virginia, and while
on the trip this old snake bit finger
broke out on him again, so the doc-
tors in Virginia took care of it for
hiim.

AUNTIE, THE HEROINE.

One moming about nine o'clock |

the ittle gate open to the piarza. |
walked out on to the little dock |
had the hittle boat teed to and got in
it and about the time | struck the
other side of the river | heard 2
splach behind me and it was my lit-
tie boy n the river, paddiing like 2

"UNCLE" PHIL BRYAN,

| mever shall forget old “Uncle"
Phil Bryan having the shingles. !
The shingles are a mean thing to
have, They are not dangerous but
they give the patient lots of troubls,

pood sense and having seen & good
many cases of the same disease on
other people himself, he told me,
he says, "Well Doctor | know you
are doing all for me any doctor can
do and all anybody else can do. It
B going o run s course and no
body can stop i, and | want o tell
vou | am glad you hushed her up
like you did.”

MAMA BEAR. BABY BEAR
AND DOCTOR.
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cubs ong on each side of her and
kept them there until she crossed
the railroad and had gone into the
woods again, Then | started the
horse up and went on 1o see my pa-
tient. Since then | haven't bothered

]

THE INDIANS AND
THE MEASLES.

On one occasion the Indians

ok sick with the measies They
were camped at this time right on
the north fork of New River in a



little pine thicket on the bank of
the river. They sent for me. | want
amd gave them all medicine and
they all got well but one, It was in
the early morning that | was there,
and ong buck named Tommy John,
a5 fine a specimen of a human as
evar lived, was about twenty-five
years old and looked like a bronze
statue, a beautiful physical speci-
men, He was just beginning to
break out. | gave him medicine
and told him to stay in his bed all
day, and | would be back late that
avaning.

| got back about four o'clock in
the evening, got off my horse and
turned him loose and went to his
wigwam and found him gone. |
asked his squaw where he was, she
pointed to the river, and | looked
and there he was sitting down,
every bit of him in the river but his
head and ears, | ask her how long
he had been there and from what |
could gather from her, he got in the
river pretty soon after | had left in
the early morning and had sat there
all day. | hollered at him. He got up
and waded ocut, | told him he had
killed himself, "unhuh me feal bet-
ter.” By might o'clock that night he
had gone to big sleep. 50 next
marning when | went up there |
found him dead.

ONE NIGHT IN AN
INDIAN CAMP.

One Saturday night about ten
o'clock a buck Indian came to my
house and woke me up, He wanted
me to go to the Indian camp and
see sick folks, Well, we got a boat
and got across the river, | took my
chest in my hand and the Indian
took the lead. He had a hunting
knife buckled sround him. And no-
body can imagine the thoughts |
had walking through the woods five
miles in an Indian trail behind that
Indian with nothing in the world 1o
protect myself. These Indians were
camped on the north fork of Mid-
die River, We got thera about one
o'clock in the night and they had

plenty of light wood splinters. |
soon found out the Indians all had
what | call dengue fever, and |
didn't stop until | had given the last
one of them a dose of medicine,1?
About three o'clock in the morning
we got through and old Doctor
Tommie, an Indian about eighty or
ninety years old, had prepared a
place for me to sleep, So | accepted
his invitation, went in, slipped off
my shoes and fell down on the bear
hides and deer hides and otter skins
and things, And | don't think | ever
enjoyed a better night's sleap in my
life, When | woke up the next morn-
ing, they wara pulling at my feet to
wake me up., | got up, walked down
to the river and washed my face
and hands in the river, and then
they were calling me to ""humbug-
us.” They had soft shelled trtle
stewed and a plenty of blue sweet
potatoes, and if ever you saw a lit-
tle cracker doctor eat a breakfast,
| eat it. Then | went around and
saw all the patients, gave them medi-
cing that | thought would be all
they would need until they got
well, and then | took my chest and
started through the woods by my-
self for home. | arrived at hame the
next day Sunday about ocne or two
o'clock in the aftermoon, a tired
chap.

OTHER INDIAM PATIENTS.

My next case of an Indiam, | was
called to Tommy Jumper -- Mam-
my Jumper's oldest son, and much
to my surprise | found as complete
o case of tuberculosis as | have ever
seen in my lifel? She had several
boys and the every one died with
tuberculosis.

My next treatment of an Indian
was Robert Osceola - John Qsce-
ola's father!* He hed & case of
bronchitis; however he got well all
right and moved owver to Big Cy-
press,

BEVERLY BEEBE
OF NEW YORK.

Along in Oetober that fall a man
named Beverly Beebe came up into
the river on @ nice yacht and tied
up just above my house on the op-
posite side of the river,'® He was &
MNew York man and very wealthy,
but a high toned courteous gentle-
men in every respect, and a very
kind hearted man, but a man whao
drank. | got acquainted with him
and we frollicked up and down the
river fishing when | had the oppor-
tunity, and he brought a lead of
good liguor with him from MNew
York in that boat, and the old man
frollicked around and got acquaint-
ed with everybody on the river and
wie all thought lots of him, He got
interested in the tomato business
and started him a little crop up the
river, He wanted something to do.

Way along in the spring after we
were done shipping and a great
many people had left he put his
wife and children in Miami for a
month longer, and then the old
man proceeded to get on a whoo-
pee, He kept it wp until the dele-
rium tremens got him, He had a
voung man named Bob Eyle with
him to take care of his boat, so
when the old man got wild Beb
came for mel® | went over there,
commenced to give him some stuff
to quiet him and got him in fairly
good shape and them Bob got &
voung man named Bracknell to
stay with him at night2?

Mext morning | got on my horse
and started up the river 1o see some
gick people, stopped and saw Mr,
Beebe on my way and he was zleep-
ing sound and doing nicely abouwt
nine o'clock in the marning. |
didn't wake him up. | went on up
to the head of the river, saw several
patients, and started on beck home.
About the time | got in a half mile
on the boat, | met both these
young men, and they were holler-
ing for me. | ask them what was
the matter. They said Mr., Beebe
was sbout to die, they thought he
would be dead by the time | got

summer/fall 1983 19



there if | didn't hurry.

I put the spurs 1o my homne and
got there in & mightly short while,
I walked in and found the old man
was siruggling for life. | noticed
his mouth was dravwn somewhat. |
openad his mouth and found s
teeth way down his throat, Turther
than | could reach wath my hingers
This was the first that | knew he
had false teeth, About that time the
boys ran and | reached in my wich
el, took out a pair of forceps, reach-
ed down has throat, got a good grip
on the teeih and pultied them oul
Then afl three of us got o work on
him and worked on Fam untill we
got his bresthing regulst amd
about frve manutes we had him o
faurly good shaps, but he was still
wild. | got him o take another dose
of sedatrve, and got his nerves & it
tie steadeer and he it up and talk-
ed to me & litthe. | told him he had
better Lie down and be guset w0 he
lzy down and dored off a little

| got across the river, put up my
harse and fed him and got my din-
ner, and that night | went back to
see him. The old man was still
mnlinq maore liguor and had drank
more hguor. | saw he was going
wild again. | gave him another seda
tve 1o quiet him and had the boys
hide all his liquor where he couldn't
find it, and toid them if he got 1o
Cutting up during the night to come
BCFDES 10 & rowboat and get me.

MNext morning just at light | was
over thers again to see him, and he

| waked up the boys and

oot Gk branedy from where
they had hid it and | gave him &
pood nice dose, el i eemed 6
stsady the old man's nerves right
. Did it 3t once. | then told
him | thought he was all right if
he wouldn't drink anymaore and just
b gunet and stay in

| got on my harse and cut out
for Deertield to see a patient, six-
teen miles north, &8 good day's
work, through the sand, swamps
and mud. | got back that evening
sbout five o'clock. | rode right up
io the yacht, got off and went in,
found Doctor [P. T.] Skaggs and
[E. W.] Pugh there from Miami, and
thee old man kpparently worse off
than ever; however they hadn't
gven hom one thing'® When |
wilked in they wers sitting there
watching him. | took in the stus
thon, sikid themn what they thought;
they both told me, “you are doing
#l for ki afnybody can do,™

irstead of giving him a sadative
et Lirme | SEwg Fum ety grasms
of calormel and ribsarh. 1t had the
dewred elfect. About madmght one
of the young men came and walkosd
mé up. | got in the rowbost and run
ol there wath them and | found |
Wit getting hiquor from both ways:
but hié wiss 3 stout man and | stay-

LEFT TO RIGHT . Swrwant Holloway, Hempion Hollowsy; unsdentifisd; cool lrem Pompend | ursdentfied:
Wakes Sonn Hollowsy, capisin of the diedor OKEECHOBEE | unidemtilmd, Fort Lsoderdsie 7908
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and didn't give him anything until
after sun up. Just let his bowsls go,
and vomit. About sunrise | gave
him something to quiet his stomach
and
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The next time | saw the old gen-
tleman he was about blind. He
came up to Lauderdale though, He
had stopped this time in Miami.
came up to Lauderdale and while
here he wanted my younger boy to
ke him around to all the old peo-
he was ascquainted with before,
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moved here in the meantime, and
had built him a paper shack house.
During the spring his wife gave
hirth to a boy, He had two children
older, a boy and a girl, This oldest

the stove, and there must have been
a little fire in the stowve already. The
can expioded, 1 the house on fire
#ll ower at once, and a few of us got
there mul in Gme o get the lady
and the balry out and Seve the o
chuldren}*

This boy got his
off from the
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skin wouldn't grow on th
leg, 80 he finally brought him back
home, and | told him there was
nothing to do to it but to amputate
it; It never would get well if it
wasn't amputated. So, | got a Dr,
Seley who happened to be at Mr.
Phil Bryan's 1o come over and assist
ma, We went o his house, and
there wasn't much fiesh o cut. |

%

On ons oocasion aboul three
o'clock in the sftermoon | got an
wrgent call 10 Miami to see o lady
who usad 1o live here. At that Time
there wat only one automobile in
Fort Lauderdale, it was one of the
old fashioned chain drives, a Reo,
A friend of mine owned it; Reed
Bryan, | proceeded to find him and
he agreed to take me down fto
Miami.

We started and at Fuiford [north
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in the road ahead of
us, it being a pretty moonshiny
night. Bryan was driving pretty
ropidiy® | called his attention
1o it and when we got up pretty
close and we whirled out 1o the
right next to the railroad to pass,
the cor halted, and stopped right
scquare on top of those six negroes.
had cut them some palmet-
toes and made them a bed and were
sound asleep, and Aeed's
right square on top of
the most
man
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a1 they thought.

The first one's answer was that,
“I thought the Lord had throwed
a boom down 1o kill us." Another
remarked he thought it was a bear
[that] hed jumped on them and was
going to eat them up. Another
made the remark the first thing he

MEMMEDY comiiicd &4 cawe 18
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S | el s drmr Bagn 31
thought of [was that] he had done
wm much devilment that the Lord

Thouwght we all mfe, but
about hall way between Danig and
Fort Leuderdale we met something
in the rosd n the pine woods, and
it dushed right in front of the car
and Read nover tried to stop the
car, just struck it and in some way,
we never could sccount for it, it
picked & man up and landed him

right over our heads into the back
seat and didn't hart him & particle.
We got home just about three
o'slock in the morning after our
night's experience with negroes,
mules and the Dania jail.

BUTLER, PEARCE & MchAB.
On one moming | got off the train

at Pompano, At that time the
Pompano all lived down
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this country. The old man is living
vt and greatly laments the settle-
ment of the country. It has run all
the game away. But that doesn't
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make any difference; he i now
about 85 or B0 years old and his
hunting days are over, The last time
| ever saw the old man we had a
chat about it
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His naeme was McNab. Finally he
saye, "'Do you see that boat yon

the canal and got back out 1o the
depot in time 1o catch the eleven
o'clock train,

Mr, Butler today is Clerk of the
Circuit Court of Palm Beach Coun-
ty, Florida,

ALLEN TURNER,

On one occasion | was called to a
man's housa by the name of Allen

Turner; well | answered the call. |
got to his I'Inlnl.-fuunl:th:lmft

Howsver next day when | start-
od back to see them, | hired a horse
fram an old man named Waite, and
got Mr. Stranahan’s wagon, hitched
the horsa to it and bought a load of
groceries such as | thought these
sick children and that sick lady
would need and & little piece of
whita side [bacon]| for the other
two, and took it to them, They all
got well and got up and the follow-

whan they got bad along in the
parly part of the night to appaint
a man with him, a long, slender tal-



And about nine o'clock in the
night the negroes bicame very ob-
streperous, they began fighting the
origingl old homs negroes The
police walked ower to see if they
couldnt stop it Two or three of
the biggety ringleading negroes pro-
ceeded 10 see if they couldn't run
the police away, One of them
calied this long slender man some
names he didn't like. He had
nothing but a little club, so he im-
mediately went home and filled his
old double-barreled shotgun with
plenty of buckshot and powder, He
walked back over there, found his
man and left him lying for the
people 10 take care of next mom-

g,

In the meantime another one had
come owver and gewe Owid Saxon
some sulting language, 5o he pro-
ceeded to put a pair of thirty-esght
bullets theough hem His nego
didn't die all at once so about mid-
night they sent for me. By this time
| had got me a little Ford automo-
bile and in about twenty minutes |
weirs up there,

The policemen met me, carried
mé to the negro and as soon as the
negro saw me he commenced to
curie me for everything he could
think of, However | held my tem-
per long enough to examing him, |
found out that he was famally
wounded and wouldn't live longer
thar an howr of bwo. He was shill
§ cussng white people: Then | told
him he had better go 10 praving
that he dhdn't have but about an
hour o five if that long. Hi reply
wag he didn't give a damn if he just
had & gun for a few seconds, Then
he cursed Saxon. Saxon started 10
shoot him again, but | held the re-
volver so he couldn't, Told him to
go on, | would "tend 1o the negroes,
Then in a short while he passed
sway. The boys took some shovels,
ook him off and dug & hole and
shoved him in the ground and wrap-
ped him up.

Afer that you never W 5 mon
polite set of negroes in your Iife a
that Alsbema st o negroes were.

They had a coroner’s inguest in a
day or two and the magistrate de-
cided that if it took killing to make
them behave; kill them,

Betore | left there | was called to
three or four of the old original mne-
groes. Pompey Cooper, who has
singe died and who was one of
them, had had some difficulty with
some of them, but [was] not hurt
much, and he decided that he
thought he would get him one of
them [the] next morning as soon as
he could see good; but Pompey got
strasghtened out all right and paid
no mone attention 0 il Charles
Saunders kad nothang but & froght
He wain 't hurt 31 all in his escapade.

| got m oy car and left about
four o'clock for home, got home
just about daylight end found a call
for Shack Town. | ate my breakfast
and lay down and slept until nine
o'clock, got up and went on to
Shack Town, found seven people in
bed with the dengue fover. | admin-
istavred 1o them, came on back
home and took a good long rest.

A MAN CALLED MULE.

stick it under Mule's shoulder blade
and almost cut oné lung off, | got
down there and saw the situation;
had & pretty fair lght and | pro-
coodod 1o pick up the membrane
around the lung and brought them
together with some cat gut and
gome long tweezers | had, sewed
Mule up, put in a little drainage
tubs, and in nine days that negro
was back on the wagon doing hi
regular work — when | was
he would be a corpse in

¥

BROWN & HIS UNCLE BRYAN.

found a little paper sack of brown
powders, The man's bowels were
running off as hard as they could;
he had messed up everything, no

ty thomoughly: he sed 1 wal p-
possd to be rhuberb and jalap,. Well,
I got to exemine it pretty canefully
and | decided it wasn't rhubarb and
jalap. | inquired where it came
from, | got the history of it and
who had bought it and | found out
what | could by examination; got
Doctor [E.W.] Pugh up here [trom
Miami| with me and we went to

DOr. Robart & Lowry came to Fort Lau-
darlabs in 1810, This phatograph in deted
1925



work and found owt it was bella-
dona.

Well, | went to work and com-
menced to pile in plenty of atro-
pine and morphing into my patient
to counteéract the effects of the
poison he already had. | had a good
nurse taking cere of him — Miss
Webb was taking care of him = |
told her how to give the medicine
and not to be afraid to give it just
like | told her.

I went down next morning. Got
thera about eleven o'clock and
found two more physicians, The
bay's uncle, 3 man by the name of
[John M.,] Bryan, had come in and
seen the condition of the boy; so
ke ordered some physicians from
Miami immediately.™ | know the
doctors all right; but it was the first
time | had ever met this old gentle-
man, Bryan. He looked on me with
contempt, thought | knew nothing.
| walked in to see my patient, ask
the nurse how he was gatting along,

She says, "Doctor he is better
than he was when you left here
last might.” Said he had been asleap
for the last six hours,

| says, "That's good."

The two physicians | mat wara
Doctor [James M., Jr.] Jackson and
Doctor P.T. Scaggs, of Miami, both
friends of mine. | ask them what
they had done. They said, "noth:
ing."" Well, | ask them what they
thiowght,

They said, "you have a difficult
case, it s a dangerous affair to
handla, and you are doing all for
it anybody can do."

Well, this old uncle had been
watching them and when they
walked out to start off, he ask
them what they had given him,
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they told him, “net a thing." That
| had given him exactly what he
needed, and perheps was taking

carg of him better tham they
could,

"Well,"" the old man says, “I
didn't think that little fellow

knew what he was doing.""

Scapge said nothing but Doc-
tor Jackson replied to him, his
reply 1o him was this: "“When you
heve that little man as you think
hasn't got any sense, with a patiemt
taking care from him, there's not
any wse of you sending anywheres
else, Miami, Jacksonville, or any-
wheres else for a physician,”

The old man says then, "you
think he knows as much abowt it
as you do?"

Jackson says, "yes, and more
than | do."

"Wall," he says, "“then you think
he is in good hands?™

Jackson says, "'l kmow it, don't
have 1o think about it, If | was to
get sick and dangerowsly sick, |
would send to Lauderdsle for him
for myself." (Which he did later
on.|

| was a little country doctor not
able to dress fine, had w0 drive an
old ramshackled buggy, and a little
old bench -legged pony, and the old
man thought that | didn't have any
S,

Time rolled on and he finally
took sick himsalf, and force of gir-
cumstances made him send for me.
I made him three visits and he
wanted to know if | knew what ail-
ed him, | told him right plain and
straight what ailed him, and | didn't
hesitate to tell him. | didn't hesitate
to tell him he had Bright's disease
of the kidneys and that he would
never get well, and if he wanted any
other doctors to get them, So he
told me that | needn’t to come
back anymore, and | didn't go back
anymorg, The old gentleman got a
gouple of other physicians 10 see
him but he died just the same,

MRS. MULLIKIN OF DANIA.

About six manths after all this hap-
pened | was sent for to see a lady

in Dania, Mrs. [John] Mullikin was
her name, On Monday about eleven
o'clock | got down there just as
quick as | could and | found Doctor
[J. Devere] Stuart, Doctor [John L]
Morth, Doctar [T.E.] Parish, and
Doctor [Peter T.] Scaggs. They had
all made a thorough examination,
they said, and pronounced the lady
with a cancer of the uterus,

Well, her husband told me to
examine her. | examined her
thoroughly. | got through with her,
he ask me what | thought, | told
them that they were all mistaken,
that it was a myxoma. Then thay
all jumped on me for disagreeing
with them, Wanted to know if |
was putting my brain against them,
| told them “no,” that they had
just made a mistake as a good
many other physicians had done in
life; that | wasn't putting my brain
againgt theirs,

The woman had been in bed
guite a few days, | don't know how
long. Stuart amd Parrish hed been
treating her and had kept her under
the influence of morphine. | was
about 1o start for home when her
husband stopped me He ask me if
| thowght | could save her. | told
him, ves, | thought | could, That
wias Monday.

All the other physicians told him
there wasn't a thing he could do
but just kesp giving her morphine
and let her go easy. He ask me what
I thought about it. | told him not
to give her another dose of mor-
phing.

"Wall,"' he says, "when are you
coming back?"

I says, ""that's up to you,"

He says, "well, | am going to
put her in your hands, if she is going
to die | had just & soon she died in
your hands as all these others."”

Those other four physicians were
all good men, but | could see they
didn't like my disagreeing with
them; however | told him not to
give her another dose of morphine
and | would be back that night, |
tald him to give her nothing but
some nourishment, all the chicken
soup and beef broth he could get



her to drink, | stopped medicine
entirely, gave her nothing but plen-
ty of nourishment, The following
Thursday morning | went down and
took that myxoma away from her,
That's been thirty years ago and the
woman is still living.

That day | got the tumor away
from her | filled a half gallon Jar
with part of it; told her husband to
take it to Miami to the hacterialogi-
cal laboratory, and have it exam-
ined and then we would be satisfied
absolutely whether there was any
part of a cancer about it or not.
Mullikin had his car out, ready to
start, and this young physician
came along. He stopped in and saw
me and saw the patient. A good
boy. He ask Mullikin where he was
going. He told him apd told him
what for. He told Mullikin he was
on his way 1o Miami and he would
take it for him and save him the
trip, and he did, and brought back
the diagnosis from the laboratory
when he ceme back. | met him
next marning, | ask him what the
results were,

He says, "'your diagnosis was ab-
salutely correct and the woman
ought to get well," and she did.

In about three weeks | had her
on her feet attending to her own
housework, They [the Mulliking]
moved over to Lake Wales several
vears afterwards; finally came back
to Dania and are living there today.

A MAN NAMED PARHAM.

On one occasion | was called up
the river about three miles to see a
man named [T.M.] Parham. | found
him pretty sick. | gave him a lot of
medicing; went back to sea him
next day, he was a good deal bet-
ter. | told him to stay in for a day
or two; but after | had gone he de-
cided he wanted to go and look
after some business on the other
side of the river, There being no
rowboat anywhere convenient he
decided he would swim the river;
knew he had swam it a many &
time; s0-he started across the river,
About the middle of the river he

took cramps and commenced to
haller for help but before anybody
could get to him he had drowned.

A MAN NAMED KYLE,

One night about nine o'clock a man
named [Robert] Kvle came after
me, He lived a way up next to the
head of the river. He had a man
named Joe Priest with him, with a
little pop-boat. | got out and got
in the boat with them and they had
to stop on the other side of the
river at the grocery store 1o get
SOMIE QrOCEries,

About the time they got out and
tied up the boat there was a fight
started right in front of Harry Brad-
dock's dough-nut stand?* They
bath jumped out and yelled and ran
to see the Tight, and | sat quistly
in the boat. In & minute or two |
got out and sat down right behind
a little guava bush where | could see
a little of what was going on, Pretty
so0n | saw a man named Berryhill
pop into the post office and get be-
hind the door; the next thing |
saw was a man named Geme Hunt,
he was & big man but making swift
time.2* He pop't into where Ber-
ryhill was: Berrvhill ask him what
was he running so for. His reply
was because he couldn't fly, Abouwt
that time | heard somebody com-
mence to holler for the doctor to
COMme, 4 man was cut into. | told
them to bring the man to me, |
wasn't coming up there,

About that time a man came
running -- jumped clean over me,
guava bush and everything, he
didn't know | was there at all, That
man's name was Oliver; about that
time | heard a hard lick on some-
thing, pretty soon they hollered out
thera was a man killed; about that
time they got to me with the cut
man, and he was cut all right, |
wiped his bowels off and put them
back and took sixteen stitches
around and sewed him up good;
and in seven days that scoundrel
was out and ready for another
fight. His name was Cramer. The
man's name who got killed was

Ellis?? MNobody ever did know who
killed Ellis, and don't to this day.

Well, the fight got quiet and
Kyle, Priest and myself got in the
boat and went on five miles up the
river. | administered to his mother,
ook care of her until she got up
again, and was well, and in about
four months she took sick again
and died right sudden.

MATERNITY LABOR CASES,

One morning | was called up to the
head of the river right about day-
light to & labor case. | got on my
old pony and galloped up there just
as fast as | could. The lady's hus-
band was gone away out in the
Everglades; she had two bays up
about seven and ten years old, She
had had those boys to bring in the
plow lines and she had them 1o
throw a board across the foot of
the bed and when | walked in she
had those plow lines tied to the
bed rail, abowut the center and her
feet braced against that board and
she was lying there a'swinging 1o
those plow lines. In about one hour
we had a nice boy baby, everything
was O,K, and | had returned home,

On arrival at home | found three
calls: one to Dania, one to Breezy
Hill, and one in the village. They
were all labor cases. | went to
Breezy Hill at once and in about
two hours delivered another babyy,
Left there at noon, went to Dania
and just at five o'clock in the after-
noon we had another baby, Got
back home and attended the call
in the village. And just about sun-
sel or & little after, between sunset
and dark, | delivered another baby,
making four deliveries in about fif-
teen hours, and two of them were
fifteen miles apart, | got home tired
down, went to sleep, slept all night.
The traveling on thesa occasions
was all done on horse back.
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river, to Captain Valentine's; ad-
ministered 1o the old gentlemnan,
and then took my rowboat and
pulled on home, Got there just be-
tween eleven and twelve o'clock
that night. | lay down and went to
sleep,

Maxt morning | had a call to
Pompano to see Mrs. [J.A.] Saxon.
Found her with a case of malaria
fever, one of those continued kind,

A YELLOW FEVER EPIDEMIC.

In the lster part of June or the first
of July 1907, | was called to Pom-
pano. | got there, found thirty
negroes with fever, The negroes had
been brought from way down south
of Miami, by & man named [M.M.]
Smoaki® thay were convicts, ™

Ha had gone down there and
b:ought them up here to work on
a contract he had taken from the
county,
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Well, | administered to them,
came on back home; next morning

me. | got up there to his house and
the old gentleman being a highly
educated old man - he proceeded
the very first thing to give me o
oussing out for not letting the
people know really what the disease
Wals.

| replied ta him, “had 1 let them

that | had | didn't lose 2 one, and
| don't suppose there was ever 2
worse epidemic of yellow fever in
the country, ™

Ol Judge Mizell afterwards al-
ways thought the world of me. He
thought | had saved this end of the
county by keeping silent and fight-
ing the disesse day and night. It
made a friend out of the old man
just as long as he lived, and when
he died fiftesn years later from
concer | lost o very dear old friend.

This epldemic lasted about a

manth and | aimost lived in Pom-
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1o pay; shé got her other physicians
all right. | kept at work with my
patients. | had all | could do any-
way, it didn't make any difference
to me.

However, about one o'clock one
night | had got through with my
work, tired down and had just fell
across a bed in Mr. Smoak's house;
| was asleep almost by the time |
struck the bed; guess | had been
seeping about an hour when Mr.
Smoak woke me up said they
wanted me 1o George Rousa's |

ok him who, and he told me. |
said she ian't my patient.

He smaid, “no, but she has got 0
much wore they want you up
there.™

Well, | took my satchel n my
hands and walked up thers it was
only about two hundred yards |
walked in and Mrs. Rouse met me,
told me her sister was dangerously
sick and she wanted me 1o come in
and do somiething for her

" -

dying; desth was on her; and in
about an hour she was dead, She
wag the only person who died out
of that whole epidemic of yellow
at Pompano. My patients all
got well and a great many of them
are living today and doing well. |

:



was thoroughly broken down when
| got through with that seige, but
it gave the people of Pompano great
confidence in me and | have done
the most of their work ever since
that time,

MRS, KNIGHT AT THE
HILLSBORO LIGHTHOUSE,

One morning after this | was called
e Hillsboro Lighthouse to see Mr.
[Captain Thomas] Knight's wifeas
I had to drive the beach road to the
inlet and tie my horse and hoop
and vell wuntil somebody would
come and take me across the inlet
in a boat. | found Mrs. Knight with
fever and | made about five or six
calls before she got well, but it
wasn't yellow fever, it was an in-
termittent fever. However | made
five or six trips, sixtean miles of
long sandy road to go with a horse
gnd sixteem miles to come back,
and heavy beach sand to go through
part of the way. | got through with
her all right and she got wall and in
good shape.

MR. THOMAS OF DEERFIELD.

On one occasion | had a call one
moerning to Deerfield to see a Mr.
[E.A.] Thomas?® He was at that
time the section man, so there
being no rock road on that side of
the river, | throwed the saddle on
Jim and we went passing along up
there, Got there about ten o'clock
and found Mr, Thomas sick hime
self, | gave him plenty of medicine,
enough to last him about two or
three days and told him if he wasn't
all right to drop me a card and |
would get back to see him, | left
about one or two o'clock for home,
arrived home about four o'clock. In
g day or two | heard from Mr.
Thomas, saving he was all right,

FEMBROKE.

A shert while after this | was called

one morning to a place known as
Pembroke, about five miles due
west of Hallandale?? | got owut

there just about sleven o'clock,
found two old people there; an old
man about seventy years old and
his wife about seventy-one or two,
both in the bed and their bones try-
ing to break, they said, They had a
couple of cases of dengue fever, or
breakbone fever, as it is generally
known,

Well, | was making that trip
every day for about a week befare |
pot thosa old people up and out of
danger. And much to my surprise
I got five dollars out of six or seven
trips fifteen miles there and back
each day; and which was a good
deal more than | expected to get
after | got there and Tound out the
situation, But they were falks and |
gave them the best there was in me,
Pulled them out and the old people
finally mowved from there and |
never did know what became of
them.

EUGENE HARDY AT
CYPRESS CREEK,

One afternoon about two o'clock
I recelved a call to go to I.l. Har-
dy's?® He lived at that time right
on the edge of a lake [Lake Bar-
bara] that made out from the
East Coast Canal; or in other words
the outlet of Cypress Creak,

I got up there about four o'clock
in the aftermcon, found a boy
about ten or eleven years old in the
bed pretty sick.?® On close exami-
nation | found he had pneumaonia
af the right lung, Having been told
that we didn't have pneumenia in
the south end of Florida, | made
the second and third examination
to be sure of my diagnosis; after
having made a thorowgh examina-
tion and satisfying mvself what it
was | commenced to treat him for
PEL TGN ia,

His father being an old Tar Heel
like myself and having seen several
cases of pneumonia in his life,
finally ask me what | thought was
the matter with the boy. | told him
he had & complets case of pneumo-
nia in the right lung.

“Well," he said, he was satisfied

that was what ailed him himself
but he wasn"t positive about it.

| went to work on the boy and
waw him every day for ten days,
Pulled him through all right and he
is now a great big fat chuffy man,

A "LADY" OF PLEASURE.

After the North Mew River Canal
had got about four or five miles in
the Everglades | was sent for one
night about eight o'clock. | was to
go up the canal to the dredge o
| got in a pop-boat with a man and
started, but he stopped me about a
mile before we got to the dredge.
He hadn't told me a thing about
what the trouble was.

He stopped and we crawled out--
he had built a little cabin and put it
up about ten feet on stilts in the
mud, We crawled up into the hut
and there | found a mother and a
girl. & girl about fourteen and in
just about thirty minutes | deliver-
ed that girl of a pair of twin boys.
Then | stayed all night and the man
brought me back home next marn.
ing im the pop-boat; and then he
carried me up thera every day for
the next eight or ten days, until tha
girl got all right. She turned out to
be one of the ladies of pleasure for
the State of Florida wherever she
was Tound,

THE PANIC OF 1907,

Im the years of 1906 and 1907F;
they were awful hard strenuous
years, Mo money to be got hold of,
Had to work on credit, take all
kinds of chickens, sweet potatoes,
corn, etc., to feed my horses, in
fact anything that | could get and
utilize for myself and wife and
children, And to cap the climax, on
the night of October 18th, 1907, it
commenced to  rain in torrents
about two o'clock in the morning
and it rained until six o'clock. 4!
About six o'clock it commenced to
blow, the same storm killed owver
three thousand people south of
Miami, and abowt fifty miles south
of where | am living,
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I was living in & little negro hut,
no plaster or ceiling, and it looked
to me like every stud in the little
house would bend double
every blow of wind.
o'clock | pulled the
center of the room and
everything | had on . and
i 1+ |
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saw
under the shelter and lodged
twenty feet up in a little pine tree.
About eleven o'clock the wind
changed and come out of the north-
west, up until this time it was in the
northeast, Then we had a blow
fram the northwest wntil one
o'clock, then it ceased and the
water was up in the floor of the
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soon had my creditors all satisfied,
In the meantime | had lots of fun
seaing the women wade about in
the waber.

SAXON OF PALM BEACH.

FEMALE PATIENTS.

While in Palm Beach | was called
acros the lake to see Mrs. Brantley.
| walked over, gave her some medi-

side of the plesce. She had two lit-
tle girls, one four and the other
two, and gave birth to another girl
baby, you might say, in smut and
greass, Mothing but a dirt floor, not
a clean thing in the shack that |
could find to put on the baby.

Thae cleanest thing | did find was

an old sheet that was dry but right
smutty; 30 | folded it and wrapped
the baby up in it; gawe the lady
what | thought she needed and left
for home expecting her o take
septicemnia and die in 2 short while;
but much 10 my surprise, | never
had 2 labor case that did amy better.

In nime days she was op, and had
the old shack cleaned up; and in the
repdn e The nesghbors seni her
plenty of something to sat for her
and the children, That lady 2% soon
a she got abke mowed back 10 Geor-
gia where she came from and raised
those three girls, and they made
nice besutiful young ladies. 1 have
never QOIIen any remuoneration, i
was absolutely charity, but | am
prowd of it just the same.

THE HENRY GRANTS OF QJUS,

One morning about eight o'clock a
man named Henry Grant who lived
in Qjus, and the word "Ojus" in
Sominale means plenty, called mae, |
hitched up my horse and drove
down there about fourteen miles.
Got to his house and found out
that it was his daughter who was
sick; found out it was a labor case,
her first baby. | went over and
examined her, found out she was
having lngering labor paing.

Stayed all day and all night,
about midnight she commenced to
hawe severe labor pams. Her mother
was there and her grandmother, and
she was in severs labor until abowt
four o'cdlock in the morning, every
thing working along 2il right and in
# normal conditon, but T was the
first time they had seen me or knew
anything about me, so about an
hour befors the baby was bormn they
decided they ought 10 hawe another
doctor, | iold them everything was
all right but if they wanted another
doctor 10 gt him,

Waell, her father had an old Ford
car and he got in it and started off
aloven miles to the next doctar, and
when he got back with the doctor
after driving the twenty-two miles
we had the child there, and the
mothar cleaned up and the baby



dressed, with a piece of fat meat in
its mouth, whan he walked in with
his othar doctor, The grandfather
paid the other doctor his five dol-
lars, but up 1o the present | hawe
newver received a cent for staying all
day and all night and delrvering her
af the child snd taking care of her
until she was ofl right snd up on her
faet. That has been seventeen years
e e | hewve never recssved any-
thing yet, and this “Ojus” of plenty
I hawe steered clear of over e

DANIA TWINS,

A few days later one morning about
four o clock | had a call 10 & negress
in Dania. | got down thers about
five o'clock in the mormimg, found
her in labor, and she was 3 girl that
I 'had delivered about eightesn years
prior 1o that time, | walked in,

I said, "“Allce, what's the matter 7"

She soid, "You knows what's the
matter,"

About seven o'clock | had two
negro boy babies, her first desh out
ol the box. This is where | got some
mare sneering, her old grandmother,
an old white hesded negro wench,
knew that that snuff to the nose
and gun powder tea was “sgwine”
o do business and do it guick. The
babess cime and all hands are doing
well today 80 for &5 | know

COX OF DANILA

Another occmeon | was called ons
sfternpoon 1o Dania w [Miss Annes
Webb] Webdh's Hotwel ** | got down
there about surmet | found a young
man in a mom with & TEmperature
of ome hundred fnve; out of has
heacd; his name was Cox, and his
ghin wai yellow — sbout the color
of old fashioned hrown paper.

| administered some medicine 1o
him got him to sweating and by
twelve o'clock that night | had re.
duced his temperature (o oneg hun
dred oneg. He gained consciousness,
he ask me what | thought, | ask him
when he made water last, Said he
didn't know when but he wanted
to then, | handed him the cham-

ber, instead of passing water he
paomses blood, and quite a guantity
of it

the best | could for him but be had
waited too long to get stention. |
todd him af the =ame time if e had
anything he wanied to sy to any
of hin family of any one, hs had
better say it becauss | ddn't thank
he was going 10 be here 2 great
while,

About that time his brother
came in, He ssk me what | thought
of him, | told him it was possible
for him 1o get well, but it was hard-
Iy probable, | mixed medicine for
the brother 10 give him during the
doy and told them | would be back
late in the sfiernoon, about night.
| got back about seven o'clock and
found hi had just passed away.

MRS. BUTLER OF DEERFIELD.

| arrived home about esght o'clock
that night and about twelve o'clock
| was called up o go 0 Deerfisid,
to see & M Butler. | gof op and
hitched wp my horse, gol op D
Deerfield about two o'clock in the
morning, found Mri Butler with a
high fever. | immediately went to
work on her snd made three or four
trips to wee her and she got well 8l
right and e for several yean

THE CHARLIE SCOTTS
OF DEERFIELD.

Along about this time | got a call
to Charley Scott’s one moming at
Deerfield.*® | got up there and
found his wife n labor and about
sheven o'clock that night she gave
birth to & girl baby. She & now a
young lady sbout eghteen yeans
okd, Maother and baby both got .
| marusl eormpieie]

Whales going up thene 1o == M
Scott the negroes ail took the fever,
and | was trotting up there for
sbout throt weeis taking care of
FOGro Cames.

THE INGALLS
OF HALLANDALE.

About this time | got a call to Hal
landale to o Mr. Ingall's*® | got
down there and found his wite and
daughter both in the bed with fever,
it logted about a week. They all got
wirll, While going to see them sévaral
of the negroes in Hallandale took
the fever and | had them to take
care of.

THE LANDSTREETS OF DANIA

Ore moming earty | had a call to a
Mr. [G.F.] Landstrest . Dania
I got down there and found his boy
pretty sck wath fever, and about
the time be got up b Papa took it,
and then the mother took it. There
wal about thres wesin of tha o
todd.

THE FROST CHILDREN
OF DANIA

About this time old Mr. Frost's
children commenced to take the
fewer, They had typhoid fewer,
There was Mamie, Sheridan, Puck,
Ling [Lincoin], and Dwina, And |
wis trotting there for six weeks
every day, Incidentally 1 didn't
lose o one, they all survived and are
living today, but they all looked
like skin and bones — regular skele-
tons -~ when they got up. About
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shape, along about the first of Oc-
tober the father returned home
from the north. | presented him
with & bill of three hundred dollars,
and the old man went in the air. He
got up on his high horse, | didn't
pay much attention to him, | saw
the son and told him what the old
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In January 1905, Broward took of-
fice ss Governor of the State,
During the session of the Legisla
ture he got an iati

the Legislature elosed, Broward had
a load of |lumber shipped down
here, 5 Knott filed an injunction to
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to do a thing, cursing and
quarreling at each other about how
certain  things about the dredge
should be done and the young men
who had
could
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work, Governor Broward was
here. 34

He invited me to go with him up
on the dredge, he didn't know
someboady might get hurt, we pull-
ed the dredge up the river by ropes
and when we got to the head of
the river where they wanted to
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started up the machinery and
commenced o throw the mod
and dirt.

After he got it in good working
condition, called his man and put
him 0 it, and saw that he was
capable of handling it, then we got
in a pop-boat and came on homs.

I had more fon with old

ot up 1o the dredge about ance a
wotk for 8 year. Fortunately we
never did have any accident to
amount to anything.

A while after this they started
another dredge known as the
Okeechobese, and it took another six
months to build it and 1 still hed
my fun with Mooney, Skinner and
Savity. This dredge was finished in

woods swinging to trees by the hair
of their heads where they had been
drowned. There was something over
four thousand people lost down
there in that storm,*

An old sea captain that | knew

well, Captain Bravo, was blown off
i Toolmale d ).
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there 14 In the world.™

I first tmsted it and | saw at once
it was pure good corn whiskey, so
| took on a water glass about one
half full. | ask him where he got
it. Said he mads it, said he made it
out of the cold corn bread ke had
lett ower

After we ate breskfasy | sk him
about the odor i the knchen and
he showed me. He then had his
litthe still working on his cook
stiove and thet was the odor |

smalled, Ha showed me he put the
bread in water and lat it stay until
it soured, and then after it got 1o
fermanting good he put it in his
tea kettie and put 2 small fire under
his tea kettle on the stove, and he
had fimed him a little copper pipe,
about the sire of a lead pencil and
esghiteen inches long, to the spout
of the tea kettle and had i1 cemented
sround so that no ar could get to
i, and his liguor was draming off
into a pint bottle px ke the one

we had taken our drink out of.
He said he made him about &
quart & wesk out of the cold corn
bread he had left. He had no dog
to eat the bread and he dsdn'™t
want to throw it away, so he con
cerved the plan of making him what
liguor he nesded And he really
made betier whigkey than the real
maeal b itsedf. | suppose the baking
of the bread had something to do
with it | got out and left him
sbout sght oclock and started
back for home. | never shall forget
that liguor i omy life: and it &
better than liguor made right from
thie row meal. Baking the bresd
would kill all the germs that maght
happen 1o be in it

THE S50L BRANNONS
OF FLAMINGD GROVES.

DOne night about eight o'clock |
got a call to Sol Brannon's. About
fifteen miles from here to the
Flamingo Groves [Davie], | got out
there sbout ten o'clock, found his
wifle in labor and bout two o'clock
in the morning we had nice ssven
pound baby. | got everything
cleansd up and | feil down on a cot
and weni 1o sleep. About seven
ochock | was waked up by a noine
oo

I looked out and = a man and
a yeariing about two years old tied
up together. He had the yearling
and was trying to get her oo a
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cow-pen, and that yearling was
taking him around through those
wieds and scrubs to a fair-you-wall,
but he stuck to her and finally got
his fingers into the yearling's nose
and led her back and put her in the
cow-pen, after they had tussied
about an hour. He was completely
exhausted when he got the yearling
in the cow-pen, It was laughable 1o
seg him and that wyearling. The
manuevers they cut was some fun,

MRS, FRANE BROWM
OF DELRAY.

One night about midnight a man
named Frank Brown, who lived in
Delray, came after me 1o go to see
his wife. He had a better car than |
did 5o he told me he would take me
there and bring me back. It was
only a short distance of twenty-
seven miles up there. We got up
there about two o'clock in the
marming. | found his wife was mis-
carrying: about three months gone,
| soon had her cleaned up and was
back home for breakfast next
maorning, She was one of them
kind that didn't mess, when she
went to do business she done busi-
ness. She got along as fine as any
patient | ever had., | gawe him
plenty of medicine and told him if
she didn't get all right to let me
know and | would come back. He
paid me forty dollars for my trip
and my work.,

THE ASHLEY GANG.

During the time the Ashley
Gang was giving the country 5o
much trouble about thres or four
WEArs, 8 man came to my house one
evening about eleven o'clock and
wanted me to go to see John
Ashley. He had got one of his eves
shot out.

| hired a man with & fast car, took
the man who had walked from Hobe
Sound to get me to go to see John
Ashloy = a dstance of fifty odd
m'ies. Wa got in the car and got as
*ar as Palm Beach. There we found
that John had come in and given
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himself up. The man had been so
long getting to me. The old man
paid me fifty dollars and me and
my man came on back home.

John stayed in jail until his eye
got well and he got in good shape
in every respect. S50 one morning
when they went to feed, John
decided he would go back to his
comrades in the woods. He turned
the jailer owver and walked out and
left him. Afterwards he and his
gang robbed three or four banks in
the next three or fTour wyears.

In the meantime he and his
crowd met some people looking
for him in the woods, they took
their guns away from them and
gave them a good whipping and
told them if they met them look-
ing for them anymore it would be
the last of them.

They finally got some of the
Ashley Gang's best friends to set
a trap for them. They had started
one night for Jacksonwille, they
got as far as the Sebastian River
bridge, found it all barred with
chains and locks, The crowd that
was after them had all hid them-
selves and John Ashley and his
bunch were all killed right there.

I had known John Ashley since
he was a baby. | saw him on one
octasion sitting in a one horse
wagon and the mule trotting along
and & partridge flew up, he grabbed
his rifle and knocked that par-
tridge's head off, stopped his mule
and went and got his partridge.
He was then about eighteen vears
old, and about six or eight wears
later he started his out-law business.

His first killing was an Indian.cs
He and the Indian had a dispute
over some alligator hides and otter
skins, and such. Killing this Indian
started him and | expect he was
justifiable: in killing this Indian
from what | have heard. They had
him in Miami jail and he didn't
think the courts had treated him
right.

While he was in jail his mother
baked a cake and carried it to him.,
She ask to see him and the deputy

sheriff wouldn®t let her, and she
ask him if he would take him a cake
she had brought to him. Instead
of his taking the cake he just took
it out of the old lady’s hands and
just erumbled it up and let it fall
on the floor right at her feet:
mashed it all up with his hands. Mo
doubt the sheriff thought there
was some file or something in it is
the reason he did it

She hed & son next to John, and
she went back and told him about
it, so next morning he left home
and he had prepared himself with
his revolver well loaded, and plenty
of cartridges, He went to Miami on
the train, walked right into the
sheriff’s office and found the
deputy who had treated his mother
that way and killed him. That gave
the alarm, the police force and the
sheriif's force and the sheriff him-
self all got after him, and he killed
twa athers befare they got him, but
they finally shot Rim until he died.
He shot the real sheriff until he had
ta ga to the hospital. This boy died
in the haspital in Miami. The sheriff
recovered and is. living today.

John Ashley got out of jail in a
few days — in a short while after-
wards — and he and his cousin
Bill Mobley got together, got two
or three others af their kin folks in
with them and went back up the
Palm Beach County and their
trail was generally across the
Everglades to Jupiter, and the
ocean and Stuart, north and south.

The evening after they had robbed
the Stuart bank in the morning,
about four o'clock in the afternoon
I got acall to the Honorable Thomas
E. Watson's, & distance of sbout
gighty miles | had to travel ** 1 had
8 Maxwell car that was in pretty
good running order. | filled her
with gas, oil and water and at five
o'clock | left Lauderdale for Hobe
Sound, In about two hours | was in
Palm Beach,

| then had to trawvel forty miles
right through the country where |
knew John Ashley and the Mobley
boys were ranging. | wasn't afraid



breakfast and | left for home &t
séven o'clock,

Between Hobe Sound and Jupiter
there was one house, After | had
passed that house about two miles
| saw o man come out of the woods
inte the road and stop. | drove on
up and as | got up close enough he
waved to me. | stopped, found it
was John Ashley and he wanted 1o
knoaw whiore | had baen.

| told him | had been 10 see the
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[North Miamil, a distance of about
fifteen miles. | filled my radiator
with water and played with the kids
a little and got in my car and went

o
Still | knew the Ashieys
Mobleys didn't
world against me.

There was a crowd or
formed in Palm Beach, and they
want out to look for the Ashley
Gang. They were in the woods
looking for them and about two
miles this side of Hobe Sound,
the Ashleys and Mobleys waved
in front of the men who
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ing | was called back to Mrs. Wat-
son’s for his son Durham. | got Dr.
[C.G.] Holland to go with me, and

bad hernia. | examined him pretty
carefully and told Mrs. Watson that

| thought that if he was operated
on it would kill him. The boy was
suffering. He says he had just as
well be dead as be in that fix, |

south Georgia, by the name of
Covington. All he had when he got
hare was forty dollars, and a wife
and seven children, and not one
of them large enough to help him
do anything, He lived here in Lau
derdale, for about a month, then
moved up the river three miles, and
pitched him a farm. He was a good
worker, ffuck to it like & man, and
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hot summer to go through and
nathing to do. He told me he only
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NOAH LEWIS® FAMILY.

About the time his family got
well, & man named Nosh Lews's

A LATER SMALLPOX
OUTBREAK.

& couple of years later | found
two cases (n Dania one morning
and Dr. Sheltoen, Dr. [1A.] Stan-
ford and mysel! all went and look-
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ot
and thay got along all right, and we
had no mare trouble with it

THE FLU EPIDEMIC.

they had in Europe seven or eight
hundred years ago, because it
affected the heart more than the
lungs, | soon found out that if you
kept the heart going all right that
it would soon be gone.

CROP-EARED CHARLIE.

|
i
4111

i
£
s:.
i
-gi'
i35

.:E
i
i
:
-4

i
-
id
g
:

-

g

2

g g

g
CF

i
?55

halfbreed got into the tribe, his
mother was Indian and his father a
black negro. This boy grew up to
be grown and he wanted to marry
o squaw, and the Indians wouldn't
allow It. It made this buck half
Indian mad; so one morming before
light he got out and crawled up on
of his wigwam with his rifle and
cartridges and every time an Indian
would come out of his tent that
moming he would put a3 bullet
through him, until he had killed

§

I have understood nine.
Crop-Eared Charise heard what
wat going on and he peeped owl
from under his wigeam and Sw
how the land lay, and he grabbed
his rifle s2ept out and 3t the crack
of hin rifle this fellow rolled off the
wignam. Charfie killed him after
e

7
E

to last him for @ few days, and tall
him to come back when he wanted
more “Humbugus.”



carried his blankets along, and she
would let him make up his pallet
and sleep on the piazza, at my
housa,

In the meantime my Yyoungest
boy [John Dent Kennedy] hod
grown wp to be about nine years
old.” One night he was out pretty
late and Charlie had come along
and my wife had given him plenty
of supper and the old man was tired
and he stuck up his mosquito bar,
put in his pallet and went to Heep.

About nine o'clock that night this
oy of mine came i and he had got
up on the piarza before b noticed,
and when he did ROTICe iT, you Never
heard mach & sgquall come from &
child, He liked o hawve Dore the
And it took her guite a littie while
1o get him over that fright, but she
finally ook him out and showed
him that it wes nothing but the
Indian, and he got satisfied, but it
learned him to come in a littde
earlier. The poor old Indian died
with the flu when we had the
epidemic of flu.

MRAS. KENNEDY'S DEMISE.

The first of September 1921,
my wife was a little puny and |
thought a change of climate would
do her good, so | took her to

recerved if Monday, telling me that
her sister was better than she had
been in years. That evening at four
o'clock | received 3 teiegram from
two phyticians tiling me to come
at once, my wile was In 2 very
dangerous condition. | started im-
medutely, went by Ganesville, and
got my older boy who was then at
the university, and got there some
time the next afternoon. Found my
wife in bed, and 23 zo0n 2 | ex-
smined her | knew it was death.
She died, and was buried on the
twenty third of October, 1821. |

came on home, left my older boy at

DR, KENNEDY'S AUTOMOBILE
ACCIDENT.

On the fourteenth of the follow-
ing January [1922], a man run up
behind me with a heavy Hudson car
at sixty miles an hour, struck my
little Ford in the rear, tore my car
all to pieces, and broke [me] all to
pieces, very near it. | was taken to
the hospital in Miami, and the first

a little money, and | took my two
boys and cut out to Grand Rapids,
Michigan. | there went in the hos
pital and stayed for two months,

and inta Mobile, Alabama; crossed
the bay on a ferry at Mobile, and
struck the road to Pensacola,
Florida.

Had car trouble and when we
got to Pensacola, we put the car in
a shop and had it fixed: left Pensa-

negro labor cass in Liberia — the
negra town in Hollywood, Florida,
I got down there and found two ald
grandmammies a holding a gal In
the bed, She was charging, it was
her first dash out the box. | axamin-
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Dr. Thomas Simpson Kennedy, circa 1930, [Fort Lauderdale His-
torical Society]. INSET: Dr. T. §. Kennody's family, ¢, 1814, in the
back yard of their home on 5.E, Gth Street and Andrews Awenue,
Fort Lauderdale. Photo taken by their neighbor Edith Lewis, who
lived east of them, LEFT TO RIGHT: mother-in-law, Mrs, Dent;
wale, Mallie Dent Kennedy;: sen, Jehn: Willie's dolls and san |, Willie.
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started  diving the
plastering, wntil it got light. My
younpest boy lay and slept through
while all this was going on, He was
ot that time twenty years old, and
had bewn on a party until about
twatlve o'clock that might at which
fime the boys brought him homa,

could see good out; light every-
where, | got him up. As soon a3 we
ook acroris the street we s=w a lot
of women and children backed up
aganst the building, takang the rain,
afraid to go any further. The wind
blowing in 2 gale of one hundred
twenty miles an hour 5t that time.

We crossed the street and com-
menced 10 get those women and
children acros and into some stores
on the opposite side of the street.
We pot them congregated i one of
the storerooms and the wind kept
getting harder. At seven o'clock
they cleimed it was blowing 140
miles an hour, It tock the plarra
off my old house and landed it
scross an sutomobile and on top
of & palmatio tree,

By this time the water was
rolling up from the ocesn and had
got to be about knee deep in the
ftreet, | saw It was coming in the
stores s0 we had to move the wo-

man and children. We took them
around on the west side of the
building in another storergom where
no waler came in. About the time
this got done the water was saity
it could be on the saxt and went
streets, and the people began
fearing a tidal wiree.

Two men came and got me and
commenced 1o drag me through the
water 10 e some DEople that were
hurt. | being crippled wp so |
couldn’t navigate m the water very
well, 30 one man gol on one Side
and the other on the other side, and
they just took me right through
the water. | went around and found
one old man and his wife; his
wife was pretty badly broken up,
and he had his head skinned. |
adminitersd o them immediately,
and made arrangements 1o get them
to the hospital as quick as possible,
and the wind was still blowing.
These men still had me dragging me
through the water from one place
to another,

Finally we heard a woman

pieces of roofs, and pieces aof tin,

all day, about three o'clock in the
aftornoon  they commenced to
come after me from one place and
anather all over the town and from
all parts of the town.
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poeopls who had been hurt in tho
slorm. Some weren't hurt  but
scared to death almost, nervous,
all up-sat,

On Sunday afternoon | found a
woman and her husband sitting on
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took her, her husband and ther
trunk and brought them o my
house, and kept them for Thres
monihs,

day morning, she was having labor
paing, | told her it would be four or
five hours before she was through
with it. About that time anather
lady went for me just three blocks
from home., My son got in the car
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child was born. | got through with
her and got back home about ten
o'clock, and at eleven o'clock the
one at my house was barn, | was
playing betwean the two from
seven o'clock until eleven o'clock,
but the two children were bom
ancl are living and doing well today.

The mothers and children both

my house in the dishpan, The hos-
pitals were all full and overflowing,
and nurses were not to be had, We
kept bachelor guarters ot our
house, and It was necessary lor the
baby to be washed. So ha got the
dishpan, backed his cars, gritted
his teeth and went at it, that is,
when | wasn"t home to do it

the pluck and grit to talk and laugh,
s0 we soon got back to where
people weren't so down-hearted.
Iin about three months everybody
was back in some kind of a shack
or houss to live in and in 8 Teirly
comfortable condition.

While all this storm and all
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eccording 1o nature,
an old gentleman who
8 kind of an agnostic, he had
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fioor at his house when the storm
was at i3 worst. They say the old
lady wanted to pray and that the
ald gentiman didn't obpect at all
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fellow ask him what he was
wndar thars,
"Wall," he said, "l went u

: g

thare to keep from being blowed
m‘}l

| ask him if he thought about the
Lord, while he was under there.
His reply was that he wes talking
to the Old Gentleman, all he knew
how, all the time he was under
there, and he meant every damn
word he tid 100.

had 1o get out in it amyhow.

| saw another fellow about that
time, | atk him how it was with
him, if he was scared much. Hin
reply was that if 8 man didn't get
scared in that thing he was just a
damn fool and didn't have sense
encugh to (et scared at anything.

I heard one mother begging her
daughter o pray. “Louise, why
don't you pray? Louise! Why don't
you pray? Louiss! Why in the

good shape,
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one another better he was
1o kill them next time, couse
shore had onough power and they
could all see it, she could see it her-
self every tima she [ooked.

About this time | got a call 1o a
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THE LAKE OKEECHOBEE
HURRICANE OF 1928,

In the fall of 1928, there came
what we called a tidal wave at
Lake Okeechobee, a regular wind
and storm, blowed just about all
the water out of the lake and
drowned from three to five thousand
people.”™ The morning after about
four o'tlock the deputy sheriff
came and got me and toock me off
up there, There were quite a few
left living hurt and skinned. We got
to the lake at Belle Glade about
seven o'clock. | took with me
plenty of bandages, and plenty of
antiseptic and plenty of catgut,
knives and scissors.

The first man | met after | got
out of the car was Ralph Cherry,
& boy | had known since his in-
fancy,™ | found him with his fest
gashed wp and he couldn't get
about. | immediately proceeded to
dress up his wounds, sewed up the
gosh and bound it up and left him
after putting him in good shape.
And from then until six o'clock in
the afternoon | was busy all day
long sewing up wounds and dressing
wounds, bandaging wounds, using
antiseptics, and doing all | could 1o
relieve the distress,

About ten o'clock it commenced
to raim and it rained all the balance
of the day. We left there about six
a'clock for home, all of us weary;
about seven o'clock it cleared away
and the wind whipped arpund in
the northwest and it turned cold:
riding in a fast car and being
right wet; when we got home the
four of us were in pretty tough
shape. This was the most distress-
ing time | have ever seem. I was
nothing to find @ man coming in
with eight or ten dead bodies tied
together behind a rowboat bringing
them in; throwing them in trucks
just like hogs: running them to
Palm Beach to bury. My recollec-
tion now is that they pulled one
hundred and fifty bodies out of
that lake the time | was up there.
And besides once in a while one
would come in alive and he was to

work on. Doctor Butler was as
busy as he could be all the time too,
and they were from sixty to seventy
years old down to infants not over
a week or ten days old, all class
boys and girls. | have seen battles
where men were left on the field,
but with all that | have never seen
anything so heartrending as the
scenes at Belle Glade and Okeecho-
bee in the fall of 1928. And no one
knows and never will how many
people were destroyed in that
deluge of water.

People had floated up there from
Miami, Fort Lauderdale, and every-
where to render all the assistance
they could, and those people cer-
tainly needed it and were entitled
to all the assistance they got. It
wias nothing to see eight or ten
young men just in the prime of life
pulled in there tied behind row-
boats with ropes, taken out of the
wiater and throwed into trucks and
hustled off to Palm Beach.

Two days later | spent the day in
Palm Besch in a hospital where
they had them in an old church,
whare they had the wounded and
hurt; | spent the day there assist-
ing.

| guess that was the most disas
trous thing that ever happensd in
the United States, unless it was the
Johnstown Flood, War was nothing
compared to that deluge at Okes-
chobee in 1928, | staved under the
pressure &5 long 85 | could, came
home and went to bed and was
sick for a couple of weeks myself,

I don't suppose that anybody has
ever been able to estimate the
damage of that disaster up there.
The farmers now once in a while
find askeleton of a body that never
was found, Let us hope that we will
never seganything of the kind again,

About one of the most heart-
rending things | saw while | was up
there was a boy | had known fram
his infancy, He knew his father was
drowned and every time they
brought in a bunch of new ones he
would examine them to see if he
could find his father. He finally
came in and the boy identified him.

At Palm Beach, they had to get a
big machine in the graveyard 1o dig
@ great big hole to bury them in,
and thers were a great many buried

just wrapped up in blankets, We
had to do any way we could to get
rid of the bodies. | guess it was
equally as bad as the Galveston
Flood.
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B, Pricer 1906, cama bo Dania,

9. Louils Pallicer: LB0E; this Tamily moved to
Feawr FivEr from Mew Smyina, Froroa.

10, Walter Scoft Holboweys 15907, arrived on
fave River; March 19208, pariicipabed in
ifim dralnags of the Evesglades by opara-
ling the dredge ‘“Oksdchobee™y later
bacarme a Broward County land davelap-
#r and Doliiidden,

11. Prileman MW, Beyan: [1044-1925); 1808,
e 1o Metw Miwed; Dhid DAdEl GESuifed
In mid.Septamse 19086, Hé BUlll afid
oparabed an inn, verlouuly cailee Bryan®s
Forel, few Mives Holsl ano few v
Inn which, 1oday, i@ opEfalad & 1hE
CEscovary Conter)opanad b & hatél an
wJanuary 32, 1900, His sons. Thomas Murs
Fay Bryan and fesd S Boyen, alie cow-
trlioea 1o the dewsaomant of Biawadd
Caommty.

1%, Denges Mewer| 8 viruleni roplcsl disessa
frangmiEied by mosgulioss and chasmc:
farired Dy Taver, ragh and pware galn kn
BE jSinis. 183 wad ona of wowifh Florida's
aredsad 0 g,

1 Tommy Jampssis Ihs Grfdaan of Thi lids
Chlaf Jumpsr of Samimobs Sar fame,
Tomemy Jdumpsi disd on Daceambss 36,
I902, ¢ the odd Jumpsr's Lamp onh tha
ergn of ihw Evediglaoes.

14, Reobert Csgenlar 1906 1507, ned & camp
suvarsl miley morthasst of Fomaann.

15, Ieiviwgy [, Bedbmi [4la; sgaiied Bebaw)
frsm  Eakbod, Mtidnail; owmi]  Eha
L Patil =iA WMost e gl Rl
BN AP DeaEe, it (Eler Shed A eaw
WiodwW Sy o Novevibed 29, 1003,
cEmaE [ Mew River In phs  windes of
LESTL The fathay FoLUFned &ICh SuCCHsa-
Irsg yriar, b Imgad uniEl 1908,

i6. Mooer Eyle 1907-1000, farmad @f Pom-
pandg. Framkh Strenahan snd nthier pla-
Nears pronounctd Kyle & complats fall-
LT R T T

L7, Willlam L. Brackonsil: & South Carodinkn,
ha had come fo Forl Leugeroes o the
yoar 1EDE wien thare were 8 psople on
P River, He wan cne of Boowasd
Souniy's The couniy commissignemn in
1913,

18, Pater Thomas Skage and Edwin ‘Worlh
Pugih: and OF, Thamad Sinpan Kes-
nady wiid dfMong Ehe dril Pdfibaras al
the Degs Counly AMdical MApso£istlcn
that wea Tormea on Sepbemeses 3, 1003,
Apcoading 1o 4n Eiiche (e GoDpeiesd in
Tem Miami Memrosalls™ on Sepismner
d, IR0, odfer Goctors whioo were mame
bary Included: Aeuhen Hadon Hubddie-
o, RS, Rurnham, L, P. Jscksam,
Jahm Gardan DuPull, Esmanar  Cegult
Simmoed, Warren I, Rimh, G, deGrajas
SEnuybEF, WIRlam Stanlay Gramding, amd
dprmd M, dEREREON; AT

19, Fmag Faner recalveo 8158 feam Rl gan-
eross Mew River nalghboes foward thé
joid of Rl heousk and funiiming fallows-
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